1: 35: 16 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 26, 2012
1:35 p.m

Stoltz called the House Finance Conmttee neeting

to order at 1:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

M chael
Managenment

Depart nment of
School Fi nance

Hanl ey,
Early Devel opnent;
and Budget,
Sweeney Nudel man,
Education and Early Devel opnent,

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg
Reggi e Joul e
Mar k Neuman
Tammi e W1 son

Comm ssi oner, Department of Education and
Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of
Ofice of the Governor; Elizabeth
School Finances and Facilities,

Di rector of

Di rector,

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY

1: 35: 24 PM

House Fi nance Committee 1

03/26/12 1:35 P.M



NEDUCATI ON  OVERVI EW  ACCOUNTABI LI TY & RESPONSI BI LI TI ES
STANDARDS, TESTI NG GRADUATI ON RATES, MOCORE CASE SETTLEMENT
UPDATE

1: 37: 04 PM

M CHAEL HANLEY, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT began wth Slide 2, which illustrated the
structure of the State Education Association (SEA). He
noted that the departnent's structure was unique to other
departnments in the state. The graph showed the State Board
of Education & Early Devel opnent at the top. The board was
a 7 nmenber voluntary board that net approximately 6 tines
per year; SEA board nenbers were appointed by the governor.
He noted that the conm ssioner's position in the departnent
was appoi nted by the board and approved by the governor. He
detailed the duties of the board. He noted that the SEA was
the school board for Munt Edgecunbe Boarding School.
Currently, the SEA had renewed several charter schools in
the state, discussed and put out for public coment new cut
scores for work keys; the work keys assessnent in regard to
the performance schol arship, reviewed and asked for
addi ti onal financi al information form tw districts
regarding the 70/30 requirenents, and put out for an
extended period of public comment a proposed set of state
standards. He shared that the role of the comm ssioner was
to set the vision for the departnent, direct and oversee
the work of the staff, nonitor and inplenent the budget,
acquire and provide grants to school districts and carry
out the role of support and accountability to the 53
districts statew de. The organi zation chart:

State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

* Commi ssi oner
o Teaching & Learning Support

School Finance & Facilities
Admi ni strative Services
Li braries, Archives, & Miseuns
Mount Edgecunbe Boar di ng School

= Professional Teaching Practices Com ssion

= Alaska State Council on the Arts

= Al aska Conm ssi on on Postsecondary Education

O O O0Oo

Representative GQuttenberg requested further information
regarding how the comm ssioner interacted wth the
i ndi vidual 53 school boards that served the districts
t hroughout the state.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



M. Hanley responded with the information on Slide 3, which
listed the responsibilities of the state under the
Educati on cl auses:

Al aska Superior Court defined, in 2007, the State's
responsi bilities under the Education cl auses:

1. Appropriate Educational Standards
2. Adequat e Assessnents
3. Oversight & Accountability
(A fourth is funding, which is a statutory deci sion)

1:42:45 PM

Conmi ssi oner Hanl ey stat ed t hat t he over ar chi ng
responsibility stopped at the |ocal education association
(LEA), or |ocal school boar ds. The state had the
responsibility of distributing funding through grants to
the |ocal boards, as well as setting standards and
assessnments and providing support, accountability, and
oversight. He explained that as a |ocal governance state
authority was given to the local districts to make their
own decisions for hiring superintendent under the school
boar d. Addi tionally, | ocal boards were tasked wth
allocating the state funds provided in their overal
budget, operating and nmaintaining school sites, student
accountability and setting and maintaining state curriculum
standards and teacher eval uati ons.

Comm ssioner Hanley relayed that the difference between the
SEA and LEA was oftentines msinterpreted. He said that the
SEA had the responsibility to set the standards and the LEA
set how to inplement those standards. He noted that
Anchorage had various nodels within the district designed
to neet state standards. He reiterated that Al aska did not
have a statewide «curriculum but that Ilocal districts
determined the curriculum to address the statew de
st andar ds.

1: 45: 35 PM

Representative WIson asked about the Anchorage system
adopting the "common core" standards, which differed from
state standards.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the information would be
hi ghlighted further in the presentation.

Representative Wl son shared that the state had Tier 1 thru
Tier 3 schools. Tier 1 schools were school that were
nmeeting the expectations set by the state, Tier 2 schools
were not neeting the standards and Tier 3 schools, which
were intervention districts. She queried what steps the
state took for inprovenent when a school fell below Tier 1.

Comm ssi oner Hanley responded that the tier system was a
function of the federal No Child Left Behind law. He
stressed that the state had a responsibility of oversight
and accountability. He said that when a district had the
authority to nmake decisions for students, and the students
were chronically Ilow performng, the state had the
responsibility to step in by offering solutions. He said
that the federal nodel also offered the student the option
of enrolling in a higher performng school. He furthered
that when districts hit intervention status, teaching
coaches were wused. He stated that the coaches worked
directly with teachers and district |eadership to align the
curriculum with state standards. He added that the SEA had
the authority to do nore, but this was not usually done out
of respect for the |ocal governance nodel

Representative WIson wondered what would constitute an
i nstance where the state m ght nore strongly intervene.

Conmi ssioner Hanley stated that the issue was an ongoing
consi der ati on.

1: 50: 23 PM

KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR reported on school funding over the
past years. She relayed that Al aska had nade a significant
investnment in K-12 education over the years. She noted that
education spending was a significant piece of the FY13
general fund budget request. The chart l|located on Slide 4
showed the general fund appropriations for K-12 Education
from FY 04 until FY 13. She stated the chart covered all
the major pieces of education funding that was dealt wth
on an annual basis: the K-12 school funding fornula, pupi

transportation, retirement system unfunded lTability
assi stance paynents, school debt rei mbur senent from
nmuni ci pal districts, school construction and maj or

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



mai nt enance, as well as one-time funding. The chart also
included average daily nenbership and a calculation of
expenditures per average daily nenbership for each fisca
year. She highlighted that there had been significant
increases in general fund spending since FYO4. She said the
total state general fund contribution had nearly doubled
from $831 mllion in FY04, to $1.7 billion in FY13. She
directed commttee attention to the K-12 fornula and pupi
transportation, which received $734.9 nillion in FY04, and
then an increase to $1.15 billion in FY13. She said that
over the sane time period, the average daily nenbership
nunbers declined, from 132 thousand to 129 thousand. She
highlighted that in FYO8 $80 million in retirenent system
costs was shifted to the state and the base student
al l ocation (BSA) was not changed or reduced by that anount.
Additionally, the FYO8 budget reflected a one-tine, $69
mllion item which included $48 mllion for district cost
factors not yet rolled into the foundation fornula and $21
mllion for inprovement grants.

Ms. Rehfeld reported that FY0O9 was the first year of the
education funding plan that had a three-year increase for

the BSA and i ntensive students, and a five-year
i npl enentation of the district cost factor adjustnment. In
FYO9 the BSA rose from $5,380 per AADM to $5,480; the
increase resulted in a $22.3 mllion increase in the BSA

| ntensi ve students in FY0O9 were funded at nine tines the
BSA, which cost the state $35.4 mllion.

Co-Chair Stoltze requested the definition of "intensive
needs" students.

Ms. Rehfeld explained that intensive needs students
required multiple services in the classroom Sone had
conditions, sone nedical, that needed to be addressed in
the classroomon a daily basis. She asserted that there was
a significant need to address the cost of serving intensive
needs students because assisting them on a daily basis was
expensi ve.

Comm ssioner Hanley agreed. He added that sone intensive
needs students needed one-on-one assistance in order to be
successful in the classroom

1: 56: 40 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Representative Gara asked about the increases passed by the
| egislature 6 and 4 years ago in an effort to assist with
retirement debt [indicated in |ight blue on the graph on
Slide 4], increase funding for special needs and to deal
with the inequity between urban and rural school districts.
He understood that schools were not currently fully
conpensated for special needs funding.

ELI ZABETH SWEENEY NUDELMAN, DI RECTOR, SCHOOL FI NANCES AND
FACI LI TI ES, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT,
DI RECTOR OF SCHOOL FINANCE answered that the funding for
each of the intensive needs students was approxinmately
$75, 000 per student. She qualified that the funding did not
necessarily follow each student; one student could cost
$30, 000, while another could cost $100,000. She said that
the funding was far reaching in accommobdating expenditures
for the intensive needs students.

Co-Chair Thonmas asked how the $80 mllion of retirenent
money given during that tinme would equate to the BSA
i ncrease.

Ms. Rehfeld replied that at the tine the $100 BSA increase
equated to approxinmately $20 mllion.

Co- Chair Thomas understood that the BSA increased by $300
in FYO08.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied it was closer to $400.
Representative Gara thought that a lot of noney had been
appropriated in the past. He pointed to FY 11 and FY 13
other than an increase in retirenment, funding renained
flat.

Ms. Rehfeld responded that she would be discussing the
nunbers for those years further into the presentation.

2: 00: 08 PM

Representative Costell o asked what the cost would be to pay
off the PERS and TERS liability.

Ms. Rehfeld replied approximately $11 billion.

Representative Costello wondered if the legislature were to
choose the option of paying off the wunfunded Iliability

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



would the ongoing liability beconme the responsibility of
the districts.

Ms. Rehfeld said that «currently, because of statutory
framework, districts are held at paying 12.56 percent for
TERS. It would be beneficial to the state for the entire
unfunded liability to be paid off.

Representative Costello recalled the Learning Opportunity
grant that was at one point rolled into the BSA

Ms. Nudel man believed that the grants were rolled into the
formula as Quality Schools grants and were now incorporated
into the total dollars that went out to the district.

Representative Costell o understood that the grants were for
teachers to use to purchase classroom nmaterial s.

Ms. Nudel man replied that she did not know exact paraneters
of the grants.

Conmi ssioner Hanley replied that the grants were part of
the local authority; local school boards and districts were
able to make determ nations on how to use the grants.

2:03: 09 PM

Representative Doogan remarked that the chart indicated
that cost of education had doubled from FY04 to FY13.

Ms. Rehfeld replied in the affirmative.

Representati ve Doogan understood that the increase in BSA
had been 55 to 60 percent

Ms. Rehfeld said that from FYO8 the BSA increased from
$5, 380 per student to the current $5, 680.

Representative Doogan reiterated that from FY04 to FY13
there was a 55 to 60 percent increase in the BSA

Ms. Nudel man explained that the BSA was not separately

represented on the graph, she stressed that the nunbers
represented the overall increase in funding.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Representative Doogan stated that he was trying to
determ ne the percentage increase form FY0O4 to FY13 on K-12
Foundati on and Pupil Transportation Formula funding.

Ms. Nudelman replied that the increase from $734,912 to
$1, 152,730 could be found on the bottom of Slide 4.

Representative Doogan requested the actual nunber  of
percentage increase in the BSA over the 10 year tine
peri od.

2:06:34 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough pointed out to the commttee that the
$11 billion liability for PERS and TERS was at an 8 percent
rate of return, which could be considered high under
current noney managenent scenarios. She wondered whether
the actual percentage rate was being considered by the
Al aska Retirenent and  Managenent Board (ARM when
presenting to the legislature what the actual Iliability
woul d be in the future.

Ms. Rehfeld relayed that the ARM board annually exan ned
the nunbers. She said that the |atest evaluation would be
avai lable in June 2012, and those would be the nunbers used
to determne the rate for FY14.

Co-Chair Thomas wondered why the student head count was
decl i ni ng.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey responded that generally the decreases
were seen in rural, rather than urban, areas.

Co-Chair Thomas queried the predicted student increase in
FY13.

MVs. Nudel man interjected t hat t he st udent nunber
projections were generated by the school districts each
year and that a slight increase was expected in FY13.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the decline was an overall trend.

Ms. Nudel man replied yes. She added that the increase could
be slight from one year to the next, but overall the
nunbers were decreasing. She directed commttee attention
to the bottom of Slide 4. She said that the increase in the
formula funding fromFY04 to FY13 was 58 percent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



2:10: 00 PM

Representative Neuman nentioned the transient student
popul ation in Alaska. He suggested that a twice a year
student count should be perforned in order to better gauge
the flux of the student popul ation.

Conmi ssi oner Hanley responded that the conversation about
mul ti ple counts was ongoing. He said that the count could
be done on a nonthly basis, but each additional count would
cost noney, and the |line would have to be drawn eventually.

Representati ve Neuman asked how noney was allocated after
appropriation by the |egislature.

Ms. Nudel man stated that the calculation was taken once a
year and then 12 nonthly paynments were sent out to the
school districts.

Representative Edgnon thought it could be informative to
conpare the 53 school districts to the K-12 Fornul a Fundi ng
in order to determne an upward trend. He felt that the
issue really surrounded the BSA and wondered if data was
avai lable that tracked the increase in school district
budgets along with the BSA

2:14: 27 PM

Ms. Nudel man believed that the data could be provided. She
noted that the DEED website posted the revenues distributed
to each district.

Representati ve Edgnon suggested including each districts
funding in aggregate in a bar chart next to the charted BSA
on Slide 4. He believed that the upward trend woul d surpass
the trajectory over a 10 year period.

Ms. Nudel man replied that the nunbers would align because
districts tended to spend all the noney they received.

Co-Chair Thomas noted that in the past school districts
were able to get by wth no budget increnents. He thought
in light of the declining oil production that school
districts needed control spending and to stop asking for
nore funding. He said that 24 percent of total operating
budget went for education. He thought that everyone, in al
departnments, needed to work together to stop spending.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Comm ssi oner Hanley agreed that $1 out of every $4 of the
operating budget was spent on education. He stressed that
the increased cost of operations was often overl ooked; the
i ssue was not increased spending, it was inflation.

Co- Chair Thomas hypot hesi zed what m ght happen if the state
| ost any significant anount of federal funding; he thought
the state would have to back fill $100 million per year.

2:19:42 PM

Representative Joule asked when in the year the student
counts occurred.

Ms. Nudel man said that the count was taken over a 20 day
period in October of each year.

Representative Joule noted that the Al aska Pernmanent Fund
Dividend and the Al aska Federation of Natives Conference
occurred in COctober. He expressed concern that rura
students traveling into the city could be mssed during the
count. He asked if the departnent had data concerning
students who not have been count ed.

Ms. Nudel man responded that the October count was based on
enrollment. If a student was enrolled in a |ocal school
but was out on an excused absence, they would still be
counted for funding.

Representative WIlson pointed out to the comittee the $30
mllion proposed increase by the governor. She noted that
each district was very different and wondered how the funds
woul d be fairly allocated. She asked if there was a plan to
rein in spending as costs increased.

Ms. Rehfeld replied the governor's proposed increased would
be addressed further into the presentation.

Representative Gara agreed that prior to FY10, funding had
not been flat. He stressed that the anmount of noney making
it into the actual classroom during FY11l through FY13 was
conpletely flat.

Conmi ssioner Hanley said that the state was increasing
expenditures to education every year through FY13. He
assured the conmttee that the governor would continue to
support educati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Representative Gara clarified that his concern was wth
cl assroom fundi ng. He cited the Legislative Research
anal ysis that showed that every departnent in the state had
received and increase for increased salaries and benefits,
except for K-12 education. He wondered why other state
agencies received salary and benefit increases in order to
mai ntain | evels of service, but schools did not.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey responded that expendi tures had
increased. He explained that the state agency did not
determ ne where local districts allocated their funds. He
stressed that increased costs, and not flat funding, was
the issue at the |ocal |evel.

2:25:15 PM

Representative Quttenberg asked if there was a chart that
depi cted how nuch noney was spent in the classroom versus
transportation, wutilities, etc. He wunderstood that the
nunbers would vary by district, but that a statew de,
curul ati ve nunber woul d be informative.

Ms. Nudel man replied that the departnent could prepare the
information at a later date. She reiterated that i ndividual
districts chose where to allocate appropriated funds.

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough i nf or med t he comittee t hat
i ndividual district school board presidents could provide
the additional i nformation: student popul ati on, | abor
contracts, nunber  of teachers enpl oyed, mai nt enance,

utilities, and program expansi on. She thought that once the
information was presented, the commttee could exam ne
rising costs by district.

Co- Chair Thomas pointed out $80 nmillion went into the BSA
in FYO4. He thought that should be recognized. He comented
that paying teacher's retirement salary directly benefited
t he cl assroom

2:29:56 PM

Ms. Rehfeld continued with her presentation. She directed
committee attention back to Slide 4. She said that in FY09
t hrough FY11l the 3-year education plan was in action, which
nmeant an increase of $100 per year in the BSA a rise in
i ntensive student funding from 9 to 13 tinmes the BSA and
district cost factors continued to be added into annual

House Fi nance Committee 11 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



costs. She stated that there was no BSA increase in FY12
rather the state provided one-tine funding of $20 mllion
placed into the departnent's budget for school districts
for the AADM plus the addition of the district cost
factor. She relayed that the FY13 governor's budget did not
request BSA increase, but did include the additional and
final year of the inplenentation of the district cost
factors. She explained that the $1.7 billion represented in
the FY13 colum was approximately 26 percent of the
unrestricted general funds before the |egislature. She said
that the request included the full funding of the BSA at
$1.1 billion, pupil transportation, forward funding for
2013 K-12 education and pupil transportation, $329 mllion
for the PERS and TERS unfunded liability; a $76 mllion
i ncrease over the current year roughly equivalent to a $300
increase in the BSA on current projected costs.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked how nany years in a row the
| egi sl ature had approved forward fundi ng.

Ms. Rehfeld replied 6 years.

Co- Chair Thomas said that forward fundi ng noney was sitting
and waiting to be spent on education.

Ms. Rehfeld relayed that $124 mllion was approved by the
house for municipal school debt reinbursenment, which was an
i ncrease over the current year of approximately $12 nmillion
and would fund the 60 to 70 percent reinbursenent of
education facility projects approved by local voters in
muni ci pal school districts. She detailed itenms that had yet
to be passed by the house in the capital budget: $61
mllion for school construction, $24 mllion for 14 nmajor
mai nt enance projects and $1.7 mllion for Munt Edgcunbe
def erred mai nt enance.

Ms. Rehfeld continued to Slide 6a. She stated that due to
the decline in oil production the governor was reluctant to
build in automatic fornmula increases; the governor was
reluctant to support automatic increase in the formla
because of the cumulative inpact on the state budget. She
said that the governor was willing to consider a targeted
fixed cost increases for education. She noted an anendnent
that had been submtted to the commttee on March 8, 2012
from OB, which had been based on energy and people
transportation costs. She relayed that the energy costs
that school districts had actually pain in FY1l had been

House Fi nance Committee 12 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



exam ned, as well as the projected spending for 2013, which

was why $20 million of the $30.3 nillion request was
targeted specifically at energy costs. She added that the
current grant program for pupil transportation was not

covering the increased costs of pupil transportation.

Co-Chair Stoltze requested further explanation of the 6
year cunul ative increase in education spending.

Ms. Rehfeld explained that if the BSA was increased by
$125, $31.6 mllion would be put into the base budget for
the school funding formula. She furthered that in FY14
there was a proposal that the $31.6 would be in the base
budget, plus an increase in the BAS of $130. The BSA woul d
increase in FY15; all the additions to the BSA would be
added to the fornula program which over a 6 year period
woul d increase to $487 million. He stressed that these were
the areas of concern when mnmanaging the state operating
budget on an annual basis while facing declining oil
pr oducti on.

2:38: 57 PM

M. Rehfeld redirected committee attention to the
governor's March 8, 2012 anendnent. She restated that the
request was for $30.3 mllion. She said that OWB had
identified people transportation and energy costs as
specific items that districts had said that they were
unable to cover. She shared that OVB proposed to allocate
the funds based on the BSA as if it had been included in
the funding fornula, but it would not be included in the
formula. The anendnent would be an appropriate way to
all ocate the dollars. She pointed Slide 6, which included
mul tiple colums detailing the school districts, state aid
foundation allocations by district Decenber 15, pupi
transportation allocations by district Decenber 15, the two
totals conbined, fixed cost increase allocation based on
AADM and the totals overall for each district.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that the graphs Ms. Rehfeld referred
to were available to the public on BASIS.

Co-Chair Thomas understood that with the BSA increase each

year the formula funding woul d need to be increased by $400
to $500 million.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Ms. Rehfeld responded that the forward funding was based on
the projection of whatever the current school funding
formula was at the tine.

Co-Chair Thomas surmsed that the nunbers would increase
over the years.

Representative Costell o asked whether school districts had
the ability to use funds on anything they wanted if the
governor's proposed budget was passed.

Ms. Rehfeld believed that the funds would be applied to
energy costs and pupil transportation. However, once the
funds were provided to the school districts, they could be
used for whatever the school board deened the highest
operation priorities.

2:43:41 PM

Representati ve Doogan wondered whether the different costs
of energy for each district would be taken into
consi derati on.

Ms. Rehfeld replied that the AADM took into consideration
all conponents of the school funding fornmula to account for
costs in various areas.

Representative Gara asked whether the increase was a net
$10 mllion increase fromthe prior year's budget.

Ms. Rehfeld replied yes.

Representative WIson spoke out against the one tine
funding. She wondered if a statewde plan to control pupi
transportation costs had been consi dered.

Ms. Rehfeld replied that concerning energy, there were sone
opportunities for school districts to acquire additional
support through the State Energy Program housed by the
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC). She stated that
the departnent could best reply on the topic of pupi
transportation.

Ms. Nudelman interjected that the conversation concerning
quality, cost-controlled pupil transportation was ongoing
She said that the departnment had tried several different
sol utions, none of which had been particularly successful.

House Fi nance Committee 14 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



2:48:49 PM

Ms. Nudel man referenced Slide 7, which detailed the |oca
effort in the public school funding formula. She said that
the public school fornmula calculated basic need for each
district by starting with the Cctober count, applying the
formula factors, and multiplying by the BSA Once basic
need was cal culated then it was decided who paid: required
| ocal effort, federal inpact aid or the state general fund.
She said that all districts received their basic need
funds. She relayed that the state general fund covered
what ever funds were needed after the required |ocal effort
and inpact aid was accounted for. She referred to the first
colum in the chart depicting the required mll rate in the
state. She explained that the required mll rate was a
contribution from | ocal governnents of 4 mlls of assessed
property value. The third colum illustrated a change that
occurred in 2002; since that tinme the 4 mlls was applied
to a reduced assessnment. The state assessor's nunbers were
reduced by only considering the increases of growth since
1999 at 50 percent. She said that when the two colums were
conpared the full assessed and reduced education values
could be determ ned. She said that the effective mll rate
due to the assessnments was below 4 percent. She discussed
the required local effort colum. She said that | ocal
governments could contribute additional anobunts. The | ast
colum on the chart showed contributions below the |oca
distribution cap of 4 mlls.

Comm ssioner Hanley talked about the pre-K program focus
within the departnent as charted on Slide 9. He stated that
the departnment funding for the Head Start program matched
federal funding. The departnent also funded Best Begi nnings
and the Parents as Teachers program He noted that the
boxes on the left of the chart represented year one and the
boxes on the right represented year two. He stressed that
the prograns were focused on high risk students. He
directed the conmttee's attention to the Entry (Fall)
colum of the left hand box. He pointed out that wunder
Col | aborative Approach the Bottom Quartile nunber was 33.
He said that the slides showed that the students noved up
the quartile, fromthe bottom into the higher quartiles as
the year progressed. He detailed the three basic approaches
the departnment took regarding pre-K  The Collaboration
Approach; which worked with Head Start to provide services
and |everaged both state and federal noney, The |Infused
Approached; which worked directly with the Head Start

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



program to increase academc rigor within the Head Start
program and the District Approach; which was created by
the district. He highlighted that positive results had been
found in both years. He noted that additional results
could be found in year two by exam ning the higher nunbers
of children in the top quartile by the spring.

Ms. Nudel man di scussed Slide 8, which detailed |ocal effort
hi story. She said that when the state went from sonething
less than 4 mlls for the local required effort, it was
state general fund noney that nade up the difference. The
chart detailed the anpunt that the state backfilled each
year under the provision.

2:59:37 PM

Representative WIson thought that communities were paying
a large anount in educations funds. She noted that not all
districts were paying the 4 mlls, but were still seeing a
substantial increase in tax dollars for education. She
understood that there were parts of the state that where
education was entirely state funded.

Ms. Nudelman replied that only districts wth taxable
property had a required local effort in the foundation
formul a.

Representative WIson understood that all parts of the
state could have taxable property if they chose.

Ms. Nudelman replied that if the area was an incorporated
government then the property could be taxed.

Representative Gara pointed out that the state aid had
i ncreased from $77, 145,225 in FY1l to $80,678,671 FY13. He
queried the forrmula that drove those nunbers.

3:01:42 PM

Ms. Nudel man stated that since 1999, property increases in
school districts were assessed at half. |If a property
assessed at $400,000 in 1998, 4 mlls would be applied, if
the property were assessed in 2000, the paynent required
woul d be $200, 000.

Representative Gara asked how the anmount that the state
pai d was cal cul at ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Ms. Nudelman said that after local required effort and
federal inpact aid whatever was l|left would be the state's
share. \Wenever the |local or federal aid dropped, the state
made up the difference.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the calculation used a full
assessed val ue.

Ms. Nudel man deferred the details of the question to the
state assessor. She explained that the assessed val ue that
the departnent received from the state assessor did not
give credit for exenptions that |ocal conmunities chose for
t hensel ves.

3:04:48 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley stated that the departnment had four
conponents in the pre-K program The departnent had $7.2
mllion in matching funds for the Head Start program Best
Begi nnings was supported at $612,000. The Parents as
Teachers program garnered $300,000 in state funds, and the
state pre-K allowed for $2 mllion. O the $2 mllion $1.7
was distributed to six different districts, $300,000 went
to two intervention districts per |egislative request.

Comm ssioner Hanley discussed Slide 10, which charted the
departnment's Al aska pre-K program approach and funding. The
funding source, state contribution per child, and total
cost per «child of the six different prograns in the
conpetitive grant were listed. He said that the Anchorage
($9,936.), Juneau (%$13,824.), Bering Strait ($17,113.),
Nonme ($13,347.), Lower Kuskokwim (%$12,132.) and Yukon-
Koyukuk ($6,711.) school districts all had grants running
pre-K prograns. He directed attention to the bottom two
boxes, which listed the Lower Yukon ($150,000) and VYupiit
($150, 000) school districts, both were intervention
districts.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked how many students were serviced
by each of the pre-K prograns.

Comm ssioner Hanley referred to Slide 9, which provided the
i nformati on year-by-year.

Representative Costello referred to a presentation by a

representative from the federal gover nient who had
hi ghlighted the alarmng fact that Al aska could count on a

House Fi nance Committee 17 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



9 to 15 percent reduction every year in federal funds from
2012 into the future. She said that a l|ist had been
provided as to where the reductions would be found and that
education was anong the |isted areas. She wondered if the
departnment had been in communication on a federal level in
preparation for the reduction of funds.

Comm ssioner Hanley stated that he had tal ked with Senator
Mur kowski, but that no one could pinpoint where those cuts
would be l|ocated. He said that the federal funding that
supported Head Start was $32 million and that that nunber
could drop significantly.

Representative Costello asked which prograns represented a
col | aborati ve approach to pre-K educati on.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the collaboration approach
involved the state working with Head Start to establish a
program He explained that the infuse approach used a Head
Start program already in place and determ ned where that
program coul d be strengthened.

3:10: 40 PM

Conmi ssioner Hanley continued to Slide 11 titled "Proposed
Al aska Standards." He stressed that the proposed new state
standards had been sent to the State Board of Education for
an extended public comment period and could be adopted as
early as June. He said that national standards did not
exist and that wuntil recently every state was given the
opportunity to develop their own standards. He rel ayed that
the current content standards had been developed in the
m d- 1990's, performance and grade |evel expectations had
been added l|ater. He shared that recently the Council of
Chief State School Oficers conpleted the devel opnent of
the common core standards. The idea was to raise the bar
for all of students across the country. He said that the
nati onal commobn core standards were set in stone and that
Al aska had devel oped common core standard unique to the
state. He believed that Al aska's fierce independence shoul d
not extend to the educational standards set nationw de. He
believed that Al aska's graduates would be conpeting wth
graduates from around the country. He said that the effort
was nmade to assure that the common core standards for the
state nmet and exceeded the national standard.

3:15:44 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Representative Gara did not understand the new standards
presented in the presentation. He asked if the required
nunber math and science courses were part of the newy
devel oped st andar ds.

Comm ssioner Hanley responded that the new standards were
meant to focus on the needs of all students and were not
intended to neet the standards set by the Governor's
Performance Schol arship. He added, however; he believed
that the new standards would nmake a difference in the
nunber of kids that would qualify for the schol arship.

Representative Gara surm sed that no considerati on had been
taken concerning the required nunber of years of math and
sci ence.

Comm ssioner Hanley rebutted that the m ninum courses for
graduation were a different conversation.

Representative Edgnon asked if the standards applied to
publ i ¢ school s.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey replied yes.

Representative Edgnon surm sed that raising the standards
woul d cost districts noney.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied in the affirmative. He added
that Best Practices suggested that standards be reviewed
approximately every 6 years. He said that it was the
responsibility of the state to set the standards and there
woul d be cost associated with any standards the state set.

3:18:17 PM

Vi ce-chair Fairclough had heard that the standards adopted
by the Anchorage School Board were higher than the current
standards out for review She asked if the Nationa
Assessnent of Education Progress (NAEP) scores would be
adopted in order to neasure Alaska's students head-to-head
with other students in the country.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that Anchorage had adopted
standards that the Anchorage School Board believed to be
hi gher than the proposed state standards. He applauded
Anchorage for attenpting to raise the bar. He did not
believe that pulling one standard out of |anguage arts

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



standards represented nore of an increase in rigor than
what was outlined in the newy proposed state standards. He
did not anticipate that there would be very nuch difference
bet ween the Anchorage standard and the one adopted by the
rest of the state. He believed that districts that wanted
to purchase curriculum materials that were aligned with the
common core standards would be adequately aligned wth
state standards.

Vice-chair Fairclough referred to a presentation from the
departnment's website on Al aska's proposed English Language,
Arts and Mathematics standards. She expressed concern wth
page 33, which stat ed:

"It is up to schools and teachers to decide how to put
the standards into practice and incorporate other
standards, including the cultural standards.”

Vi ce-chair Fairclough queried the validity of an assessnent
that was created by those it assessed. She stressed that
Al askan graduates were being conpared with other students
by their NAEP scores for college adm ssions and expressed
concern that Alaska's students would be in the |ower
percentil e.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey believed that the state standards woul d
be equal or greater than the rest of the country.

3:23: 07 PM

Representative WIlson asked if it would be cost effective
for the state to use an assessnment that was already being
used in the rest of the nation.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the departnent did not
know what the costs would be. He said that if the other
assessments proved to be nore cost effective for the state
than creating our own assessnent, then one of them would be
used.

Representati ve Costello echoed constituents concerns
regarding how the districts conmunicated with the parents.
She said that parents of children that performed well under
the school based assessnent testing believed that their
children were doing very well in school. She opined that
when conpared to test scores on the national I|evel the
students were underperformng. She hoped that as the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



depart ment | ooked into assessnents, nmeani ngf ul
comuni cation with parents woul d be consi dered.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey asserted that educators needed to stop
lying to kids. He clarified that building a false sense of
self-esteem would be detrinmental to students in the |ong
run. He felt that the proposed standards would allow for
nore honest assessnents.

Representative Costello asked if the state could stop
participating in No Child Left Behind.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied no. He said that there were
wai vers that alleviated the state's responsibility for
adequate yearly progress. He reported that if the state
wanted to nove towards a waiver several things would need
to be in place: the school accountability nodel would need
to change, college and career ready standards would need to
be established, and student achievenent would need to be
tired directly to teacher and princi pal eval uations.

3:29:10 PM

Representati ve Doogan probed the three sets of standards:
t est based graduation standards, coll ege schol arship
standards and how they all fit together.

Comm ssioner Hanley explained that the present standards
were content standards and when standardi zed testing becane
required sone performance standards were built into
particular grade levels. He said that once it was required
to assess students across grade levels the "grade |evel
expectations,” which were performance standards for grades
3 through 10, were added. He relayed that the three
standards had been sinplified into one in the new proposed
standards. He furthered that the standards set what kids
need to know upon graduation, but the assessnments that were
performed neasured how students were progressing towards
proficiency of the standards. He said that Al aska currently
assessed students in grades 3 through 10. He wal ked t hrough
the assessnments starting with the developnental profile
which occurred in the first nonth of kindergarten and the
first part of 1st grade. He shared that the standards based
assessnment was perfornmed in grades 3 through 10. He said
that the assessnent were driven by federal statute and was
the largest conponent of the state's assessnent protocol

He stated that the final test was the H gh Schoo

House Fi nance Committee 21 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Graduation Qualifying Exam (HSGQE), which existed in
statute and was a mninum conpetency test of basic 8th,
9th, and 10th grade skills.

3:35:10 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough said that the HSGQE was the test
showed that students in the state were 20 points below the
nati onal average.

Comm ssi oner Hanley corrected that it would be the standard
basel i ne assessnent that recognized the |owcut score. He
said that the HSGQU was not a separate test. In 10th grade
the student took the standard baseline assessnent with the
HSGQE i ncor porated; one test would result in two scores.

Commi ssi oner Hanl ey conti nued to t he Alternative
Assessnent: Modified and Nonstandardi zed HSGQE, which was
used for students with disabilities. He highlighted that
the Normreferenced Assessnent was the one assessnent that
was still a part of the protocol, but was no |onger part of
the state's accountability protocol.

Comm ssioner Hanley continued to Slide 13, which listed
several other assessnents.

Co-Chair Thonmas asked how the state rated on the NAEP
Scor es.

Conmi ssioner Hanley stated that the NAEP was perforned in
the 4th and 8th grades. He shared that at the 4th grade
|l evel the state ranked 5th from the bottom in reading and
33rd from the top in math. He added that in 8th grade
reading the state was 7th fromthe bottom and 26th from top
in math. He shared that Alaska was ranked 3rd in the
country as far as progression in an upward direction.

3:40:10 PM

Co- Chair Thonas wondered if the numbers could be broken
down by district.

Comm ssi oner Hanley though he could provide the nunbers at
a | ater date.

Representative Costello asked if the NAEP was independent
in providing a representation of a group of students.

House Fi nance Committee 22 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Comm ssi oner Hanley replied that every student in
representative districts took the test in the 4th and 8th
gr ade.

Representative Costello wondered if the departnment knew how
many el enmentary school curriculunms used Everyday Math

Comm ssi oner Hanley replied that he did not know.

Co-Chair Thomas asked who chose the students in each
district to take the NAEP test.

Comm ssioner Hanley said that it was a random sanpling of
students. He added that the diversity of each school
district was taken into consideration in order to select a
good representation of the state's popul ation. He said that
5,500 4th graders were selected and 4,800 8th graders were
selected for the test statew de.

3:42:10 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley discussed the graduation rate, he
explained that he adjusted cohort graduation rate was
reported as a fraction:

The nunerator is the sum of the nunber of graduates
within the cohort who receive a regular diplom on or
before June 30.

The denom nator is the sum of all students assigned to
the cohort fromthe 9th grade class three years prior.

Comm ssioner Hanley stressed that the converse of the
equation was not the drop-out rate. He stated that the
current graduation rate was 68 percent, and rising. He said
that drop-out rates were rated annually. He cited the green
bar on the graph, which illustrated a 4.7 percent drop-out
rate for 2011. He explained that by adding together the
drop-out rates for the four year cohort; 2008 through 2011,
the total drop-out rate was 20.1 percent.

Co-Chair Thomas asked if school districts suffered a
financial | oss when students dropped out.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that it would depend on when

t hey dropped out. The funding would remain in the systemif
t he student dropped out after Cctober.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked what the drop-out equation on
t he annual basis. She wondered what happened to the extra
10 percent.

Conmi ssioner Hanley replied that approximately 2 percent of
the students had serious disabilities and noved into life
skills courses rather than graduating, 2 to 3 percent that
ended up being 5th or 6th year seniors and the renainder
who noved on to get their certificates of achievenent.

Representative Costello asked if the districts ever
followed up with students that had dropped out to detern ne
why they had not finished.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that interviews did not occur
at the state level, but often they were perfornmed at the
local level. He said that given the nyriad of reason that
students dropped out it was difficult to address with a
si ngl e nmet hodol ogy why students |eft school.

Representati ve Gara cited pages 4 ( Gener al Fund
Appropriations for K-12 Education) and 15 (G aduation and
Dropout Rate). He noted that the years wth the nost
i mproved graduation rates directly correlated wth the
years with the | argest boosts in education funding.

3:47:21 PM

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that he could not speculate on
the matter.

Representative Gara recalled that the state was 5th from
the bottom nationally for 4th grade reading ability. He
asked if a nore conprehensive voluntary pre-K system woul d
have a positive effect on the nunbers.

Comm ssioner Hanley responded that it was difficult to
predict. He said positive results had been seen in the
current pre-K program but stressed that «current pre-K
progranms served nostly high risk students.

3:48: 21 PM

Conmi ssioner Hanley turned to Slide 16, which listed the
Boar di ng Hone School s around the state.

House Fi nance Committee 24 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the boarding schools had |ong
waiting |ists.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied no. He added that they did tend
to operate at full capacity. He recalled that Mount
Edgecunbe had a waiting |ist.

Representative Neuman wondered if any of the boarding
school s, other than Munt Edgecunbe, would eventually be
st at e oper at ed.

Comm ssioner Hanley responded that discussions on the
matter were not occurring at this tine.

Co- Chair Thomas wondered if the departnment was responsible
for oversight of teacher conpetency.

Comm ssioner Hanley said that the departnent worked
directly with teacher prep programfor the university.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the Professional Practices
Comm ssion (PPC) was involved 1in nonitoring teacher
per f or mance.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey explained that the PPC would only get
involved if a teacher had violated the |aw

Co-Chair Thomas asked if teachers at Munt Edgecunbe had
t enure.

Comm ssioner Hanley believed that they did. He said he
woul d need to research the issue further.

Co-Chair Thonmas expressed curiosity as how Muunt Edgecunbe
teachers mght be treated differently for tenure because
the school was state run. He thought that the granting of
tenure for those teachers should conme from the State
Educati on Board or The Legi sl ature.

Comm ssioner Hanley replied that tenure was generally
granted by the State Education Board. He said that the
board was currently pushing for accreditation, higher rigor
in regard to social studies and SAT testing for al
students.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey concluded that regional schools needed
to be driven by I ocal comunities.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



3:53: 04 PM

Representative Joule pointed out that the |evel of funding
the legislature could offer was based on the throughput of
the oil pipeline. He wondered if the departnent had done
any nodeling to determ ne what |ess funding would nean for
rural school districts.

Commi ssioner Hanley replied that nost small districts did
not cone to state for suggestions on their budget. He
expressed that the departnent was wlling to work wth
t hem He said that conversations were taking place
regardi ng regional schools. He warned that the setting up
of regional schools could have a negative inpact on smaller
schools. He believed that there were nodels avail able that
could be studied in order to offer rural students a greater
opportunity in a larger setting.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:55 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 03/26/12 1:35 P. M



